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OHR-RRTF/LA/2001/96

Dear Mr. Begic,

I refer to your letter of 23 October 2000 requesting a written waiver from the High Representative’s Decision of 27 April 2000 that bans the reallocation of state owned property, including former socially-owned property.

In particular, you request this office to allow the Municipality of Tuzla to allocate seven plots of land, registered as: 

a) cadastral units number 3179, covering the area of 2,177 m2, and 3178/5, covering the area of 539 m2 – both cadastral municipality of Tuzla I; 

b) cadastral units number 3165/4, covering the area of 31 m2, 3165/5, covering the area of 251 m2, 3177/3, covering the area of 22 m2, and 3182/24, covering the area of 61 m2 – all cadastral municipality of Tuzla I;

c) cadastral unit number 3178/4, covering the area of 122 m2 – cadastral municipality of Tuzla I;

to “TEHNOGRAD” company for the purpose of building business premises, i.e. an auto-center. 

The land records that you enclose demonstrate that the cadastral numbers mentioned under item a) refer to socially-owned construction land and that the right of the land disposal and use is shared between the Municipality of Tuzla and the Lignite Coal Mine. The land records also demonstrate that the cadastral numbers mentioned under items b) refer to socially-owned construction land held by the Salt Factory, as well as that the cadastral number mentioned under item c) refers to socially-owned land held by “Putevi Tuzla”. According to the Municipal Council’s Decision of 28 March 2001, the Lignite Coal Mine has never used the land in question for the previously established purpose, which is why it is obliged to return it back to the Municipality of Tuzla for the purpose of further reallocation. 

In addition, the Decision states that the Salt Factory and “Putevi Tuzla” were registered as holders of the land in question on the basis of an air survey but that they have never been de facto holders of the land in question; therefore, the parties agree that the current users’/holders’ approval is not necessary in the case of the land reallocation in question. Also, you state in your letter number 02-023 of 23 October 2000 that the land in question was not used for any purpose prior to April 6, 1992.

The land allocation in question was confirmed by the Municipal Council of Tuzla, in its decision number 01/07-31-6724/00 of 28 March 2001, and approved by the Municipal Public Attorney, Ms. Zehra Kurt, who states in her opinion number M-16/01 of 25 April 2001 that the municipal authorities of Tuzla have complied with all relevant laws and regulations. The construction project has been supported by the Cantonal Ministry of Urbanism (letter number 12-23-10941/2000 of 27 September 2000) and by the Municipal Department for Physical Planning and Environment (letter number 06-03/11-23-5069/2000-MA of 13 September 2000).

The beneficiary was selected on the basis of a land allocation tender, advertised in “Oslobodjenje” on 2 August and 20 September 1999. According to the letter number 01-57/10-00 of 7 October 2000, signed by Mr. Miso Bozic, President of the Serb Civic Council, the land allocation tender was also accessible to minorities, who showed no interest in applying.

The beneficiary is obliged to pay 72,249.70 KM for the land allocation and 148,550.40 KM for the land facilities (rent). The compensation is to be paid to the Municipality of Tuzla.

In light of the information that you have provided, this office authorises the Municipality of Tuzla to allocate the aforesaid land for the purpose described above. 

To the extent that this waiver is granted on the basis of the validity of the documentation you have provided, this waiver shall itself cease to be valid if a court of competent jurisdiction, under a final and binding decision, brings into question the authenticity or accuracy of this documentation, and/or the information that it contains.

Sincerely,

Ambassador Valerie Sluijter

Deputy High Representative for Return and Reconstruction
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